
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

FEBRUARY 18, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION 

      PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / February 4, 2013 

                                           Council Work Session minutes / February 11, 2013 

 

SWEARING IN:    Judge Michael Hoyt / Judge Jody Bishop 

 

PRESENTATION:  Ruff Wilson Youth Organization / Starke Irvine / Tom Lott / Barbara Brown 

 

PROCLAMATION:  Arbor Day  / February 23, 2013 

 

PRESENTATION:   Beautification Quarterly Award / Rebecca Trosclair 

 

PRESENTATION:   Baldwin County Board of Education / David  Tarwater / Jonathon Ellis – Daphne Elementary / 

                                     Dana Horst Bottoms – W.J. Carroll Elementary / Mark Doherty – Daphne East Elementary / 

                                     Tom Hartner – Daphne Middle School / Dr. Meredith Foster – Daphne High School /  

                                      Denise D’Oliveira – S.E.E.D.S. 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:     

 

1.     Revisions to Zoning Map 

        Recommendation:    Unanimous Favorable / Ordinance 2013-11 

 

2.     5
th
 Amendment to Ordinance 2011-54, Land Use & Development Ordinance / 

        Appendix O, Low Impact Development & Green Infrastructure  / Ordinance 2013-12 

 

MOTION:  Set Special Called Council Meeting Date to Interview for District 7 Vacancy 

  

MOTION:   Elect Council President Pro tem 

 

CITY CLERK POSITION CANDIDATES 

 

MOTION:  Set Special Called Council Meeting Date to Interview for City Clerk Position 

 

MOTION:   Set Council Retreat Date for March 24, 2013 1:00 p.m. at the Bayfront Park Pavilion  

                                                                 

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway     

        Review minutes / February 11
th
  

1. Resolutions: 

a.)  Bid Award:  (3) Hydraulic Recycling Trailers 16’ / Pro-Trainer, Inc. / Resolution 2013-10 

      b.)  Prepaid Travel / Rick Whitehead / Florida Digital Governmental Summit / Tallahassee, FL / 

                     May 15-18, 2013 / $140 / Resolution 2013-11 

               c.)   Designate HMR, LLC as the project consultant for the ATRIP project / Lake Forest Phase III / 

                     Consulting Services / Resolution 2013-12 

 

        2.)  Motions: 

               a.)  Motion to go out to Bid/Obtain quotes as required for roof repairs for City Hall (old part of  

                     building) and Nicholson Center 
1



 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                FEBRUARY 18, 2013                      PAGE   2 

 

        3.)  Financial Reports: 

              a.)  Treasurers Report / January 31, 2013 

              b.)  Sales and Use Tax Collections / December 31, 2012 

              c.)  Lodging Tax Collections / December 31, 2012 

              d.)  Summary Statement: Revenues & Expenditures w/Comparatives / December 2012 

 

  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  -  Haygood      

         Review minutes / January 7
th
  

             

 C.  PUBLIC SAFETY -  LeJeune      

 

     

 D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry 

       Review minutes / February 13
th
  

 

 E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune 

MOTION: Authorizing the Mayor to approve the Change Order #1 (Attached), in the amount of $61,150.00, to SJ&L, Inc., 

Civil Contractors, for Phase 1 of the Daphne Sports Complex Project expanding the scope of work to include the downstream 

channel and wetland restoration with the understanding that the change in scope of work is less than 10% of the project total 

and there is no conflict with public bid law.                    

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones           

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority - Conaway  

  C.  Industrial Development Board - Haygood  

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 
  E.  Planning Commission – Scott  

       Review minutes / December 20, 2012 

a.)  Set a Public Hearing date for March 18, 2013 to consider: 

Rezoning Amendment / Lynne R. Brown 

Location:    Northwest of the intersection of 6
th
 Street and Dryer Avenue 

Present Zoning:  R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District 

Requested Zoning: R-6, (G), Garden or Patio Home District 

Recommendation: Favorable 

      

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune   

  G. Utility Board - Fry           

           

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

   C.  Department Head Comments 

        City Clerk Report: 

         a.)  Band Permit / Extend stop time for music one (1) hour / Beth Pierce / Wedding Reception / June 15, 2013 

         b.)  Parade Permit / Daphne United Methodist Church / Annual 5K and Fun Run / March 30, 2013 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

 

 

 

2



   

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                FEBRUARY 18, 2013                      PAGE  3 

   

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Repealing Resolution 2009-73 and Establishing Policy for Procurement 

      of “On Call” and Project Engineering Services for the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-08 

 

b.)  Recognizing the Daphne High School International Baccalaureate 

       Program Class of 2013. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-09 

 

c.)   Bid Award: (3) Hydraulic Recycling Trailers 16’ / Pro-Trainer, Inc. . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-10 

  

d.)   Prepaid Travel / Rick Whitehead. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-11 

 

e.)   ATRIP / Resurface Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive from Dunbar Loop to 

       Rolling Hill Drive (Lake Forest Phase III) / Consulting Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-12 

 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                FEBRUARY 18, 2013                      PAGE   3 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

        1
ST

 READ  
a.)  Revisions to Zoning Map. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-11 

 

b.)  Amend Land Use & Development Ordinance / Appendix O, Impact  

      Development & Green Infrastructure. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-12 

    

 9.   COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL:       

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY   PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL    PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY     PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE    PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN      PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

 

INTERIM CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___ ABSENT____ 

4



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

1 

    

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m. 

  

2.  ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Councilman John Lake gave the invocation. 

  

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake Randy Fry; Ron Scott; 

Robin LeJeune; Dane Haygood. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Adrienne Jones, Planning 

Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; 

Vickie Hinman, Human Resource Director; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, 

Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Suzanne Henson, 

Senior Accountant; Jane Ellis, Mayors Assistant; Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Officer Houston 

Sanders, Police Department; Larry Cooke, BZA; Bob Segalla, Utility Board; Willie Robison, BZA; Philip 

Durant, BZA; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee; 

Darrelyn Bender, Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce 

 

Absent:  Kim Briley, Finance Director. 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: JANUARY 22, 2013 COUNCIL MEETING & JANUARY 29, 2013  

                                             SPECIAL CALLED COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES 

 

There were no corrections to the January 22, 2013 council meeting minutes or the January 29, 2013 Special 

Called council meeting minutes, and they stand as approved. 

 

ATTORNEY GENERALS OPINION ON FILLING VACANCY OF  
 

Mr. Ross discussed the opinion from the Attorney General on the process for filling the Mayor’s position. 

The process will be as out lined in the AL Code §11-44G-2.  According to that code section for Class 7 & 8 

cities of 12,000 or more the selection of the Mayor lies with the city council for appointment.  The process 

Mr. Ross outlined for council to consider is as follows: 

 

 Each member will nominate one (1) person from council or any qualified elector, they cannot 

nominate themselves nor vote for themselves 

 No requirement for a second to be made for nominations 

 When concluded chairman closes nominations.  There is no requirement that the chairman have a 

second to open or close nominations.  If there is a default or someone wants to make another 

nomination after nominations are closed it can be reopened or closed by a 2/3 vote of council. 

 The suggested process, as has been done in the past, is each council member nominated one (1) 

person, and the votes will start with the first person nominated, then to the next one nominated, so if 

there are seven (7) people, say Jay Ross is nominated first, and he gets four (4) votes then there 

would be no other votes for the other nominees. So the first person to get four (4) votes becomes 

Mayor. 

 If after nominations and votes are taken and someone gets four (4) votes the City Clerk is 

empowered by state law to swear that person in, and that person will become the Mayor upon 

swearing in. 

 If the Mayor is Mr. Scott then Mr. Haygood would assume the position of Council President, unless 

or until, council decides otherwise. 
5



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

2 

 

Mr. Ross asked council if a vacancy occurs on council this evening that council declare that seat vacant, and 

council will have 60 days from this date to fill the seat for the rest of the term. 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt the following process for appointing someone to fill 

the office of the Mayor: 

 

1. Each member will nominate one (1) person from council or any qualified elector, they cannot 

nominate themselves nor vote for themselves 

2. No requirement for a second to be made for nominations 

3. When concluded chairman closes nominations.  There is no requirement that the chairman have 

a second to open or close nominations.  If there is a default or someone wants to make another 

nomination after nominations are closed it can be reopened or closed by a 2/3 vote of council. 

4. The suggested process, as has been done in the past, is each council member nominated one (1) 

person, and the votes will start with the first person nominated, then to the next one nominated, 

so if there are seven (7) people, say Jay Ross is nominated first, and he gets four (4) votes then 

there would be no other votes for the other nominees. So the first person to get four (4) votes 

becomes Mayor. 

5. If after nominations and votes are taken and someone gets four (4) votes the City Clerk is 

empowered by state law to swear that person in, and that person will become the Mayor upon 

swearing in. 

6. If the Mayor is Mr. Scott the Mr. Haygood would assume the position of Council President, 

unless or until, council decides otherwise. 

 

Seconded by Councilman Lake 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

Council President Scott opened the floor for nominations. 

 

Councilman Rudicell nominated Ron Scott. 

Councilman Haygood nominated John Lake. 

Councilman LeJeune nominated Dane Haygood. 

 

There were no other nominations. 

 

Council President Scott closed the nominations. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
6



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

3 

 

 

                      VOTING FOR MAYOR 
 
                             RON SCOTT 
 

                                NAME                                    VOTES                         TOTAL 

                                       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                             TOTAL        3 
 

 

FAILED 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conaway 

 
NAY 0 

Rudicell 

 
NAY 0 

Lake 

 
NAY 0 

Fry 

 
AYE 1 

Scott 

 
ABSTAIN 0 

LeJeune 

 
AYE 1 

Haygood 

 
AYE 1 

7



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

4 

 

 

                      VOTING FOR MAYOR 
 
                             JOHN LAKE 
 

                                NAME                                    VOTES                         TOTAL 

                                       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                             TOTAL        3 
 

 

FAILED 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Conaway 

 
AYE 1 

Rudicell 

 
NAY 0 

Lake 

 
ABSTAIN 0 

Fry 

 
NAY 0 

Scott 

 
AYE 1 

LeJeune 

 
NAY 0 

Haygood 

 
AYE 1 

8



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

5 

 

 

 

                      VOTING FOR MAYOR 
 
                         DANE HAYGOOD 
 

                                NAME                                    VOTES                         TOTAL 

                                       
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                             TOTAL        5 
 

 

COUNCILMAN HAYGOOD BECOMES THE MAYOR 
 

 

Mr. Haygood was sworn into office by the City Clerk, Rebecca A. Hayes. 
 

Mr. Haygood took the seat of the Mayor. 

 

 

 

4.  REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

There is a resolution to be considered later in the meeting.  The next meeting will be February 11
th
 at 4:00 

p.m. 

 

     B.  Buildings and Property Committee – Lake 

The committee met earlier this evening, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

 

 

Conaway 

 
NAY 0 

Rudicell 

 
AYE 1 

Lake 

 
AYE 1 

Fry 

 
AYE 1 

Scott 

 
AYE 1 

LeJeune 

 
AYE 1 

Haygood 

 
ABSTAIN 0 

9



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

6 

 

C.  PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell 

No report.  The next meeting will be February 13
th
. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The committee reviewed the Trash ordinance and made some revisions to the debris pickup fees which is on 

the agenda tonight for approval.  The next meeting will follow the Public Safety meeting February 13
th
.   

 

E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE/SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

The minutes for the January 22
nd

 meeting are in the packet.  Phase II of the Lake Forest project is moving 

along smoothly.  The next meeting will be February 18
th
.  

 

                                                                                 

5.   REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

A. Board of Zoning Adjustments – Jones 

No report. 

 

B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The minutes for the November 26, 2012 meeting are in the packet. 

        
C. Industrial Development Board – Haygood 

The minutes for the January 28
th
 meeting are in the packet. 

 

D. Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be February 14
th
 at 4:00 p.m.  There are two (2) more seminars on WWII. 

 

E. Planning Commission – Scott 

The Site Review meeting will be will be February 20
th
, and there is a Special Called Planning Commission 

meeting on February 7
th
 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

F.   Recreation Board - LeJeune 

No report.  

 

G.  Utility Board – Fry 

There is an ordinance on the agenda tonight regarding easements for the Jubilee Square Shopping Center, and the 

next meeting will be February 27
th
 at 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

6.  REPORTS OF THE OFFICERS: 

    A.  Mayor’s Report 

No report. 

 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross congratulated Mr. Haygood on becoming Mayor.  He asked council to declare Mr. Haygoods 

council seat vacant. 

 

 

 

 

 

 10



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

7 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to declare Council District 7 seat vacant.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to set a deadline of Monday February 18, 2013 5:00 p.m. as the 

cutoff date to receive resumes for the Council District 7 seat vacancy.  Seconded by Councilman 

Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

Mr. Ross stated that the approval by council for the easements are required by state law for closing the sale of 

Jubilee Square Shopping Center.  

 

Mr. Ross asked Mrs. Jones to discuss the reason for the six month moratorium on adult entertainment and tattoo 

establishments. 

 

Mrs. Jones said that she had a call regarding establishment of a tattoo parlor, and had a visit in her office from 

someone asking about establishment of a lingerie and novelty shop.  Currently the Land Use Ordinance does not 

have provisions that directly address this.  There are regulations in the business license information that talks 

about adult establishments.  So in order for staff not to be in a position of not knowing what to do when an 

application comes forward she recommends council setting a moratorium on both of those uses so that they can 

develop language that would be easy to follow, and to make sure not to get the city in a position  where it ends up 

in a lawsuit.  In most cases adult establishments cannot be prohibited so there has to be language in the ordinance 

that allows them to go somewhere, and at this time the ordinance does not have that language.  She thinks the city 

is in a vulnerable position, and in order to get the city out of that they need to come up with some language in the 

ordinance. 

 

Mr. Ross recommended a six (6) month moratorium, and if the amendment to the Land Use Ordinance is not 

ready by that time council can extend it. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to approve a moratorium on establishment of adult entertainment stores 

and tattoo parlors in the City of Daphne for 180 days starting today February 4, 2013.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR                  NAY    NONE OPPOSED                     MOTION CARRIED 

 

Mr. Ross asked council to adjourn into executive session at the end of the meeting to discuss the sale or purchase 

of real estate. 

 

    C. Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director  – reported that spring registration is going on.  The Southern 

Shootout Soccer Tournament is next weekend, February 15
th
 and 16

th
  with 50 teams registered and 30 are out 

of town teams. 

 

 
11



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

8 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – reported that the Governor awarded the second phase of the 

ATRIIP funds.  The project selected was the intersection of County Road 13 and County Road 64 which will 

be a county and city project with the county taking the lead.  He said there is one more round of ATRIP to 

come.  He will be coming to council to discuss which project they want to submit. 

 

Adrienne Jones – Planning Director – reported that the zoning and annexation of The Retreat at Tiawasee 

that was pulled from the agenda has been submitted to the county and city as a subdivision plan.  They have 

also received an application for a Popeye’s Chicken restaurant. 

 

Rebecca Hayes – Interim City Clerk – reported that there is a parade permit that needs council approval on 

the agenda and asked council for a motion to approve. 

 

MOTIONBY Councilwoman Conaway to approve the permit for the Loyal Order of the Fire Truck 

Parade / February 10, 2013.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Douglas Dugat  - Sehoy Subdivision -  commended council for the appointment tonight, and is proud 

to live in Daphne, and spoke of changing the way the Mayor is replaced. 

 

Mr. Rod Drummond – 367 Ridegwood Drive – congratulated the new Mayor, and spoke of the five (5) year 

old hostage being released today, and was disappointed that no one nominated the person that received 50% 

of the vote during the election. 

 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Business Owner in Daphne – congratulated the new Mayor, and spoke regarding 

business logo’s on exit 35 and asked that a slide show be given at a work session on rejuvenation of 

blighted areas.  He feels the money is wasted by giving $35,000 to  the Chamber for Blue Print for a Better 

Tomorrow. 

 

Mr. David Preston – Daphne – congratulated the new Mayor, and spoke regarding filling the vacancy of 

the Mayor. 

 

Mr. Kerry O’Connor – Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce –congratulated the new Mayor, and thanked 

council for their past and continued support of the Chamber. 

 

8.   RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES, ORDERS AND OTHER BUSINESS 

 

      RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Approve Lease Purchase Agreement with Hancock Bank /  

      Garbage Truck & Mowers . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-06 

 

b.) Engineering Analysis for City’s Communication Tower. . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-07 

 

 

 
12



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

9 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolutions 2013-06 and 2013-07.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR                       NAY    NONE OPPOSED                    MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2013-06.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR                     NAY    NONE OPPOSED                       MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2013-07.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to amend the dollar amount not to exceed  $12,000 instead of $25,000.  

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPSOED          MOTION CARRIED 
 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

 2
ND

  READ          
a.   Trash Ordinance . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-04 

 

b.)   Rezone: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-05 

 

c.)   Annexation: GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-06 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Bullet Proof Vests Replacement . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-07 

 

e.)   Job Reclassification: Mayors Assistant. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-08 

 

f.)   Contribution: Blue Print for a Better Tomorrow . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-09 

 

       1
ST

 READ 
g.)   Consenting to the Vacation and Conveyance of Certain Easements 

        by the Utilities Board of the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-10 

 

 
13



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

10 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinances 2013-04, 2013-05, 2013-06, 2013-

07,2013-08 and 2013-09.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to adopt Ordinance 2013-04, 2013-05, 2013-06, 2013-07, 2013-08 and 

2013-09.  Seconded by Councilman Haygood. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED     

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2013-10.  Seconded by 

Councilman Fry. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Scott   Aye 

Lake   Aye 

Fry   Aye 
 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-10.  Seconded by Councilman 

LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adopt Ordinance 2013-10.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED         MOTION CARRIED 

 

 
   9.  COUNCIL COMMENTS 
Mayor Haygood thanked council for entrusting him with this great opportunity.  He is grateful and humbled for 

the opportunity to serve the City of Daphne.  He is certainly not the most experienced on the council, and he 

pledged to work with council hand in hand, and he will work hard, and he thinks they can continue to work as a 

team just as Mayor Yelding had envisioned. He thinks they can accomplish a lot working together.  He said the 

emotions are still tempered with a little bit of heavy heart and sadness that they had to go through this process.  

He thinks that they all wished that they did not have to have this appointment.  Mayor Yelding left some BIG 

shoes to fill, shoes that he cannot fill, not just what he accomplished while in office, but what he accomplished as 

a man.  He certainly looks forward to working with council, hopefully, they will have a great relationship, and 

continue what they started in moving Daphne forward, and will continue to move Daphne forward. 

 

 
14



FEBRUARY 4, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

11 

 

Councilwoman Conaway congratulated Mayor Haygood, and look forward to working with him. 

 

Councilman Rudicell congratulated Mayor Haygood, and said as long as he considered all the opinions and 

considered all the facts he will do fine. 

 

Councilman Lake congratulated Mayor Haygood.  He said that there was a lot of talking around City Hall, and he 

thinks no one can say that he did not keep his word.  He said the city will be well served, and he hopes they will 

look back at this in four (4) years and all will say they made the right decision.  He looks forward to serving and 

seeing what they can do in the next four (4) years. 

 

Councilman Fry congratulated Mayor Haygood.  He said they have full faith and confidence in him.  He 

appreciated that he spoke well of Mayor Yelding on unity, and the city moving forward.  He will tell all, that at 

least as from his standpoint, all options were considered and he has faith in the decision that was made, and he 

asked that they come together and support the city which they all care about so deeply  

 

Councilman LeJeune congratulated Mayor Haygood, and wished him good luck. 

 

Councilman President Scott congratulated Mayor Haygood, and said he has had the opportunity of working with 

him in the last three (3) plus months, and found him to be extremely bright and extremely detailed oriented.  He 

knows Mayor Yelding wanted to move the city forward, and he thinks Mayor Haygood will take the same 

attitude.  He appreciates the councils demeanor and professionalism in the selection process. 

 

 

10.  ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss the purchase or sell of real 

estate.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

The City Attorney certified that the above mentioned reason is an appropriate reason to enter into Executive 

Session according to the Open Meetings Act. 

 

    AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:35 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,        Certification of Presiding Officer:   

            

 

                                                     
 

____________________________       ______________________________     

Rebecca A. Hayes,       Ron Scott, 

Interim City Clerk                        Council President    

   

        

 

15



FEBRUARY 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune.  

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, Interim City Clerk; Scott Hetrick, Attorney; 

Britton Bonner, Attorney, Kyle Navarro, Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Vickie 

Hinman, Human Resources Director; Sherree Hilburn, Payroll and Benefits; Rick Whitehead, IT 

Coordinator; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee; Willie 

Robison, BZA; Douglas Dugat. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. RETAIL STRATEGIES / CHUCK BRANCH, CHARLES BRANCH & ROBERT JOLLY: 

Mr. Chuck Branch and Mr. Robert Jolly gave a power point presentation on a plan to bring 

businesses into the City of Daphne. 

 

 

2. REVISIONS TO THE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK / VICKIE HINMAN / HUMAN 

RESOURCE DIRECTOR & SCOTT HETRICK, CITY ATTORNEY 

Mr. Hetrick stated the revisions are to Chapter 9 of the handbook dealing with the attendance policy, 

FMLA and military leave.  Theses revisions are needed to make it compliant as Federal laws have 

changed since 2009 when the handbook was last revised.   

 

3. CREATING A STRATEGIC PLAN / ERIC NAGER, ERNIE BERGER & TIM 

SWANSON 

Mr. Nager presented their plan for drafting a strategic plan for the city.  They will be contacting 

department heads for their input. 

 

 

4.  ENGINEERING SERVICES / RICHARD JOHNSON / PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR 

Mr. Johnson discussed a procurement plan for hiring engineers for city projects to make it more 

equitable for area engineering firms in the area.  He said in no way is this a criticism of Hutchinson, 

Moore and Rauch.    He recommended two types of agreements: 

1.  Rotation of Projects 

2.  On Call Services  

He said that Request For Qualifications will be sent out to area engineering firms.  The agreements 

will be brought to council for approval. 

 

Council President Scott allowed representatives of area engineering firms to speak. 

 

Mr. John Peterson with Hatch Mott McDonald spoke giving a synopsis of his company. 

 

 

16



FEBRUARY 11, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

Mr. Joe Bullock with Preble Rish spoke giving a synopsis of his company 

 

Mr. Andy James with Volkert & Associates spoke giving a synopsis of his company. 

 

Mr. Ray Moore with Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch spoke giving a synopsis of his company. 

 

Council President Scott said that Resolution 2009-73 naming Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch as sole 

engineer for the city will be rescinded at a future council meeting. 

 

5. SIGN ORDINANCE / HANDOUT OF PLANNING COMMISSION 

RECOMMENDATIONS ON MONDAY  

Council received the handout of the recommendations by the Planning Commission detailing the 

revisions.  They addressed A-Frame (sandwich board) signs, banners and promotional advertising. 

Council wants to consider all the changes to the sign provisions at the same time instead of piece 

milling it.  

 

Council President Scott requested that the City Clerk position be on the agenda to narrow down the 

candidates for interviewing. 

 

 

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:51 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

Interim City Clerk                                                                                                                                             
       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President     

17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

STANDING COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

 

PUBLIC WORKS/BEAUTIFICATION/MUSEUM COMMITTEES REPORT 

71



CITY OF DAPHNE 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 

FEBRUARY 11, 2013 
4:00 P.M. 

 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chair Person Ms. Conaway, 
Councilman Ron Scott, Mayor Haygood, Deputy Finance Director Christine Ciancetta,  
Senior Accountant Suzanne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Mr. John Lake arrived at 4:15 pm. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resources Director Vicky Hinman, Public Works Director 
Richard Johnson, IT Coordinator Rick Whitehead, Building Maintenance Supervisor Frank  
Barnett and Councilman Pat Rudicell. 
 
II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
Councilman Pat Rudicell requested that replacement/purchases for large Capital  
Items/Equipment be on the March Finance Meeting agenda for discussion. 
 
III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 
A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
      Ms. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 
Positions      Status 
Sales Manager      Pre-employment process 
City Clerk      Applications being reviewed  
Municipal Judge     DOH: 1/29/2013  
PSW (Grounds)      Applications being reviewed   
GIS Technician      (20) Applications being reviewed 
Fire Fighter      Accepting applications 
 
Other Human Resources’ projects or meetings:   

 Conference calls with Kronos regarding new server and upgrades. 
 Reviewing Personnel Handbook (revisions needed) 
 W-2’s- Payroll meeting guidelines for Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act (PPACA) – January 29, 

2013 
 Step Increases entered for eligible employees 
 Blood Drive – February 14, 2013 

 
Ms. Sherree Hilburn discussed the City’s annual Worker’s Comp audit.  Ms. Hilburn provided an 
estimated contribution billing.  Ms. Hilburn noted that after the annual audit the City may owe a 
balance based upon the auditor’s findings.  Ms. Hilburn reviewed the various discounts allowed on the 
City’s billing.  Discussion continued on how the discounts were calculated. 
(Ms. Hilburn researched and found additional information on Workers Compensation Billing  Discounts:   

 Scheduled Discount - Based on formula comprised of: Mod rate, Loss Ratio, Experience modifier, how many 
years in the Fund and Premium size. Loss Ratio = liability claims, lawsuits/legal.   

 The highest discount possible is 25%.  

 Renewal Dividend – Share of profits distributed to all members in the fund (3+ yrs) determined by the Experience 
modifier.) 

Ms. Henson discussed that Department Heads need to remember to require all contractors to carry 
Workers Comp insurance before they perform services for the City of Daphne.  Ms. Henson noted that 
the City’s Workers Comp rate increases for contractors that do not carry their own insurance. 

72



Finance Minutes - 2013-02-11.doc  2  

Mr. Scott noted there had been some discussion of the Council about changing the number of pay 
periods set for Council from 24 pay periods/yr to 26 pay periods/yr.  (Becky Hayes, Interim City Clerk 
checked with the League and received advisement: The salary of the councilmembers must be fixed by the 

council through passage of an ordinance six months prior to the election.  The salary schedule in existence before election 
continues during the next administration.)  
 
IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 

A.  Financial Reports 
 

1.  Treasurer’s Report:  January 31, 2013 
            The Treasurer’s Report totaling $19,663,309.54 was presented by Ms. Conaway.   
 

Motion by Mr. Ron Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report as of January 31, 2013, in the 
amount of $19,663,309.54.  Seconded by Ms. Conaway.  Motion carried. 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: December 31, 2012, $ 
 Ms. Conaway stated the Sales and Use Taxes were up slightly.  The Sales and Use  
Tax collections for December 31, 2012 were 1,266,051.50. 

     
3.  Lodging Tax Collections, December 31, 2012 , $40,495.14. 
Ms. Conaway stated the Lodging Tax Collection for December 31, 2012 - $40,495 were down  
from December 2012 - $42,279.22. 

 
4. Summary Statement:  Revenues & Expenditures w/comparatives, December 31, 2012 
Discussion was made on the comparative totals from FY03-FY13 and Ad Valorem collections.  
Ms. Henson noted that each year a large property collection check is received from the County 
in either December or January and this year a $1,532,703 check was received in late January 
in addition to the $638,360 check received on January 15th   and next month’s comparative 
statement will reflect those collections. 

 
5. Report: New Business Licenses – January 2013   
There were 47 new businesses and 5 closed businesses in Daphne.   

         
6.  Bills Paid Reports – December 2012 
Ms. Henson noted that additional purchase description has been added to the Bills Paid  
Report as a request by Mayor Haygood to make the report more informative. 

 
  B.    Request to go out to bids/obtain quotes for:   

1. City Hall Roof (Existing Old Roof)  
           2. Nicholson Center 
 

Mr. Johnson reviewed the evaluation reports for repairs needed for the roofs at City Hall and 
the Nicholson Center.  Mr. Johnson stated there were a couple of  recommended repair 
options for each roof : restoration vs. replacement.  Mr. Johnson noted that estimates for 
recommended repairs for the City Hall roof ranged from $30,000 - $160,000 and that the 
Nicholson Center estimates ranged from: $4,000-40,000. Ms. Henson explained that the 
Nicholson Center roof repair estimate falls below the required Public Works Bid Law limit of 
$50,000 so quotes could be obtained for that repair.  Mr. Johnson requested approval to go 
out to bid for the City Hall roof repair and to obtain quotes for the repair of the Nicholson 
Center roof.   

      

Motion by Mr. Ron Scott for Bid out City Hall Roof Repairs (old section of roof) and obtain 
quotes for the repair of the Nicholson Center roof. Seconded by Mr. John Lake.   
Motion carried. 

73



Finance Minutes - 2013-02-11.doc  3  

 
 
  C.  Prepaid Travel:  (Resolution) 

 Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Florida Digital Governmental Summit; Tallahassee, 
FL, May 15-18, 2013 - $140 

        
A request for Prepaid Travel for IT Coordinator, Rick Whitehead was presented. 
 
Motion by Mr. Ron Scott to adopt a Resolution for Prepaid Travel for IT Coordinator in 
the amount of $140 to attend the Florida Digital Governmental Summit; Tallahassee, 
FL, May 15-18, 2013 . Seconded by Mr. John Lake.   Motion carried. 

 
 
  D.  Bid: 

1. 2013-E-(3) Hydraulic Recycling Trailers 16’ 
Mr. Johnson discussed that monies are available to purchase the trailers through a ADEM 
Grant.  Mr. Johnson also recommended the low bidder, Pro-Tainer, Inc. be awarded the bid.  
Discussion continued these are specialized trailers to haul barricades. 
 

Motion by Mr. Ron Scott for Bid Recommendations for 2013-E-(3) Hydraulic Recycling 
Trailers 16’ be awarded to Pro-Tainer, Inc.  Seconded by Mr. John Lake.   Motion 
carried. 

 
  E.  Designate project consultant for ATRIP project:  Lake Forest Phase III 
 
Mr. Johnson discussed the ATRIP approved project: ACOA 59010 ATRIP(001) – Baldwin County 
ATRIP 02-01-22 – Resurface Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive from Dunbar Loop to Rolling Hill 
Drive ( Lake Forest Phase III ).  Mr. Johnson noted a project consultant needs to be approved by 
Council in order to comply with Grant Requirements.  Mr. Johnson stated staff’s recommendation is 
for HMR, LLC to provide these consulting services. 
 
 
Motion by Mr. Scott to recommend Council adopt a resolution designating HMR, LLC 
as the project consultant for the ATRIP project: ACOA 59010 ATRIP(001) – Baldwin 
County ATRIP 02-01-22 – Resurface Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive from Dunbar 
Loop to Rolling Hill Drive (Lake Forest Phase III).  Seconded by  Mr. John Lake.  Motion 
carried. 
 
 
  
V. OLD BUSINESS 
No old business was discussed. 
      
 
VI. ADJOURN   
The meeting was adjourned.           
 
 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 
Monday, January 7, 2013   5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall 
 

Committee 
Councilman Dane Haygood 

Councilman Randy Fry 
Councilman Pat Rudicell 

Richard Merchant, Building Official 
Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor 
Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director 

Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator 
 

Committee Minutes (Summary) 

 

Present:   John Lake, Frank Barnett, Dane Haygood, Randy Fry, Jane Ellis, Pat Rudicell, Richard 
Johnson, Margaret Thigpen, Rick Whitehead, Ashley Campbell, Visitor-Michael Hoyt 
 

A.) Minutes from January Meeting: Motion made to approve minutes from January 
Meeting.  Approved.    
 

B.) Eastern Star Property:  Richard Johnson discussed the deed for the Eastern Star building 
and property and after research he does not think anyone will challenge our use of the 
building.  Three trustees are deceased and there was further discussion about the 
history of the building.  The Committee will have Becky continue to research. 
 

C.) Nicholson Center – This was the original city seat for the county and then it became the 
Normal School and the state had title. 8/23/65 it was transferred to the City of Daphne.  
City built the actual building on site which served as a rec/gym to support the local 
schools without gyms. 

 
D.) City Property Map – Richard Johnson took the 1st draft of the map to review. 

 
E.) Civic Center & Bayfront – Margaret reported that the marketing piece should be 

complete soon.  This marketing tool will be used not only for the facilities but for 
tourism in general for the City of Daphne.  The websites for Bayfront and Civic Center 
are being revamped and at the next meeting she will present a few ordinance updates 
for the committee to consider and approve that are basically housekeeping. 

 
F.) Building Inspection – Monthly reports distributed by Ashley Campbell. 17 new homes in 

December with a total of 70 building permits totaling $3 million. 
 

156



 

 

 

P
ag

e2
 

G.) Building Maintenance – Frank Barnett reported that David McKelroy has asked him to 
get a replacement cost for the roof on the Nicholson Center. Last year it was patched 
but it is time for an entire new roof.  Pat Rudicell asked how we can use this facility if we 
are to make these repairs.  Dane suggested that the committee council members take a 
visit to look at both the Eastern Star and the Nicholson Center. 

 
6:25 PM  Meeting adjourned. 
 
 

157



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, February 13, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

 

  
I.         CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
  Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry, Chairman; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Captain Danny Bell; Mr. Bill Boor. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  /NOVEMBER 14, 2012: 

 

No corrections to the November 14, 2012 minutes and they stand as approved. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mr. Bill Boor asked how the revisions to the Animal Control ordinance was coming along. 

 

Councilman Fry said that they are considering changing the fines for the 2
nd

 and 3
rd

 offenses.  He asked 

Mr. Boor if the problem was better. 

 

Mr. Boor said it was, but it could start up again at any time, and the increase in fines would be a deterrent. 

 

The committee requested that the ordinance be sent to Mr. Ross for revisions of the fines for the 2
nd

 

offense be increased to $250 and the 3
rd

 offense be increased to $500 and go before the judge, and to have 

the ordinance on the March agenda for review. 

 

 

 

IV.     ORDINANCE REVIEW/DISCUSSION 

 

a.) 2003-31 / To Control Public and Private Outdoor Lighting 

 

The Code Enforcement Officer was not present to report on this issue.  Mr. Fry will call him to 

get the information, and put it on the agenda for next month.  
 

VI. OTHER BUSINESS 

Captain Danny Bell mentioned complaints the Police Department has received regarding door to door 

salesmen.  The salesmen it turns out had a permit.  The problem was the heavy handed manner they were 

using to sell their product which was alarm systems.  His thoughts are why are they allowing this in the 

first place since in this day a time it is very dangerous.  He would like the ordinance to be revised.  The 

committee will check with Mr. Ross as to the legalities of the ordinance, and Captain Bell will research 

ordinances from other cities in order to make the revisions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 
158



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 

PAGE  2 

 

 

VII.   ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss, Pat Rudicell made a motion to adjourn the meeting at 

5:50 p.m. and was seconded by Robin LeJeune.  Motion Carried. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

159



 

160



 

CHANGE ORDER MOTION 

 

 

Motion: Authorizing the Mayor to approve the Change Order #1 (Attached), in the amount of 

$61,150.00, to SJ&L, Inc., Civil Contractors, for Phase 1 of the Daphne Sports Complex Project 

expanding the scope of work to include the downstream channel and wetland restoration with the 

understanding that the change in scope of work is less than 10% of the project total and there is 

no conflict with public bid law. 
 
  
 
 

161



C:\Documents and Settings\Mit\My Documents\Projects\Daphne Sports Complex Road (12-841-12)\Change Order\Change Order No 001 (Wetlands)

P.O. Box 190034

Mobile, AL   36619
Phone:  251-661-7926

Fax:  251-660-8364

To: Date:

Project:

Attn:

ITEM QNTY UNIT EXTENDED

1 1            LS 5,500.00$      

2 1            LS 14,850.00$    

3 250        TN 30,250.00$    

4 1            LS 6,050.00$      
5 1            LS 4,500.00$      

61,150.00$    

JUSTIFICATION:

GENERAL NOTES:

BY: BY:

Work is currently anticipated to be performed during the middle of February.

Regrading of On-Site Detention Pond 4,500.00$          

1

2

3

This change order is for the mitigation of the erosion within the existing channel.

This change order requires the addition of thirty (30) working days to the contract time.

Any additional rip rap required to complete the overflow from the detention pond to the new 
channel shall be paid for under existing contract line items.

Jeffrey W. Rode, VP

4-Feb-13

04-Feb-13Hutchinson, Moore & Rauch, LLC
P.O. Box 1127

14,850.00$        

Wetlands Ledge Stone 121.00$             

Wetlands Clearing 6,050.00$          

Change Order Request No.  001

Wetlands Engineering Fee 5,500.00$          

Wetlands Grading

Channel Mitigation

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE

Regarding:

Tim D. Lawley, PE

Daphne Sports Complex
Daphne, AL

CHANGE ORDER REQUEST

Jeffrey W. Rode, VP

TOTAL:

SUBMITTED: ACCEPTED:

S J & L, Inc. Huntchison, Moore & Rauch 

Daphne, AL   36526

162



1

Richard Johnson

From: Ashley Campbell <epm@daphneal.com>
Sent: Friday, February 08, 2013 1:56 PM
To: Ron Scott
Cc: Dane Haygood; Jay.Ross@arlaw.com; Richard Johnson
Subject: Fwd: Daphne Sports Complex - Channel Mitigation
Attachments: Change Order No 001 (Wetlands).pdf; 10-1-12 

DaphenSportsComplexUpstreamCondition.JPG; 10-31-13 DaphneSportsComplexSevere 
ErosionatBasinOutfall.JPG

Council President Scott, 
I would like to request that a Motion to approve the Change Order for the Daphne Sports Complex (attached) be 
placed on the Council agenda for Monday, February 18th.   The change order is needed to restore the wetlands 
at the outfall of the City's storm water detention pond. Currently, severe erosion is threatening the entire pond. 
Until we stabilize the wetland area, we cannot complete the storm water detention pond. We have a state and 
federal permits for the site, and both agencies are very concerned that if we do not implement the restoration as 
soon as possible that environmental harm could result. I am also very concerned.  I have attached some of 
photos of the site for your review.   If you or anyone else would like to visit the site, I would gladly take you. 
Just let me know.  Also, attached below, is Richard Johnson's email regarding the timing and cost effectiveness 
of the project.  
 
Thanks for your time, 
  
  
Ashley Campbell 
Environmental Programs Manager 
City of Daphne 
epm@daphneal.com 
Office:251-621-3080 
Cell: 251-234-7122 
Fax:251-621-3719 

---------- Forwarded message ---------- 
From: Richard Johnson <directorpw@daphneal.com> 
Date: Wed, Feb 6, 2013 at 12:54 PM 
Subject: RE: Daphne Sports Complex - Channel Mitigation 
To: Mayor Dane Hagood <mayor@daphneal.com>, councildistrict7@daphneal.com 
Cc: Ashley Campbell <epm@daphneal.com>, Tim <tim@hmrengineers.com> 
 

Mr. Mayor: 

  

Here is the change order I discussed with you this morning. This does represent a change in scope of 
work that does not exceed 10% of the total project. So, public bid law is not in play. Unfortunately, 
Mrs. Briley is not in today and I have not been able to discuss with her. This has been discussed in 
PW Committee and several Council Members are aware of the issue. 

163



2

  

As owner representative for the City I am in favor of approving this C.O. with your blessing.  This work 
will need to be done now or in the future. If it can be rolled into the current project the cost savings 
are significant. No mobilization, no separate bonds, etc… The Ordinance and Associated Resolutions 
authorizes the Mayor to approve and take all necessary actions/documents. 

  

Unfortunately, the timeline is the critical path in the viability of this additional project scope. They want 
to get started in a little over a week. 

  

Let me know how you want to proceed.  

  

Yours, 

  

RDJ    

  

Richard D. Johnson, P.E. 

Public Works Director 

26435 Public Works Road 

Daphne, AL 36526 

  

Phone:    (251) 621-3182 

Fax:         (251) 621-3189 

Cell:        (251) 379-1305 

  

directorpw@daphneal.com 

  

From: Tim [mailto:tim@hmrengineers.com]  
Sent: Tuesday, February 05, 2013 11:18 AM 
To: directorpw@daphneal.com 

164



3

Cc: Ashley Campbell 
Subject: FW: Daphne Sports Complex - Channel Mitigation 

  

Please review the attached change order.  If this is acceptable on your end, I will sign and get the process 
started. 

  

Thanks, 

  

Tim 

  

From: Jeff Rode [mailto:jeff@sjlcontractors.com]  
Sent: Monday, February 04, 2013 3:19 PM 
To: 'Tim' 
Subject: Daphne Sports Complex - Channel Mitigation 

  

Tim, 

  

Attached is our proposed change order for the Channel Mitigation.  Should you have any questions, please do 
not hesitate to contact me. 

  

Thanks, 

  

Jeff 

  

Right-click here to download pictures.  To help protect your privacy, Outlook prevented automatic download of this picture from the Internet.
SJL Civ il

 

  

Jeffrey W. Rode, VP 

S J & L Civil Contractors 

165



4

P.O. Box 190034 

Mobile, Alabama   36619 

  

Phone:   251-661-7926 

Fax:        251-660-8364 

Cell:        251-583-6609 

  

The information contained in this e-mail message is intended only for the personal and confidential use of the recipient(s) named above.  If the reader of 
this message is not the intended recipient or an agent responsible for delivering it to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that you have 
received this document in error and that any review, dissemination, distribution, or copying of this message is strictly prohibited.  If you have received 
this communication in error, please notify us immediately by e-mail and delete the original message. 

  

 
 
 
--  
Ashley Campbell 
Environmental Programs Manager 
City of Daphne 
epm@daphneal.com 
Office:251-621-3080 
Cell: 251-234-7122 
Fax:251-621-3719 

166



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REPORT OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES 

 

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS REPORT 

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY REPORT 

 

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD REPORT 

 

LIBRARY BOARD REPORT 

 

PLANNING COMMISSION REPORT 

 

RECREATION BOARD REPORT 

 

UTILITY BOARD REPORT 

167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



207



208



209



210



211



212



213



214



215



216



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

MAYORS REPORT 

 

 

217



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

CITY ATTORNEYS REPORT 

 

 

 

 

 

DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS 

 

 

 

 

218



219



220



221



CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

RESOLUTIONS, ORDINANCES ORDERS & OTHER BUSINESS 

 

 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

222



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2013-08 

 

 

Repealing Resolution 2009-73 and Establishing Policy for Procurement of “On Call” and 

Project Engineering Services for the City of Daphne 

 

 
WHEREAS, Resolution 2009-73 established HUTCHINSON, MOORE AND RAUCH, L.L.C. as the 

City's sole engineer for all projects within the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF DAPHNE desires to maintain a relationship with HUTCHINSON, 

MOORE AND RAUCH, L.L.C. for reoccurring “On Call” Engineering Services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF DAPHNE desires to establish a protocol for the equitable assignment of 

Engineering Services on a rotational basis to qualified Engineering Firms for City projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, Resolution 2009-73 is in conflict with the desires of the CITY OF DAPHNE to open 

Project Engineering Services up to qualified Engineering Firms for City projects on an equitable basis; 

and  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF DAPHNE shall determine and select qualified Engineering Firms through a 

Request For Qualifications (RFQ); and  

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF DAPHNE desires to enter into a contract for professional services with 

qualified Engineering Firms to provide project engineering services; and 

 

WHEREAS, the CITY OF DAPHNE desires to enter into a contract for professional services solely with 

HUTCHINSON, MOORE AND RAUCH, L.L.C. to provide “on call” engineering services; and 

 

WHEREAS, should city officials determine that a particular engineering firm is better qualified, or 

brings unique resources to a particular project or service need, the Daphne City Council may assign such 

work to that engineering firm regardless of predetermined project assignment order;  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BYTHE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. That Resolution 2009-73 is hereby repealed in its entirety; and 

2. That HUTCHINSON, MOORE AND RAUCH, L.L.C. is designated as the sole provider of “on 

call” engineering services; and 

3. That Engineering Firms for Project Engineering Services will be qualified and selected through a 

Request For Qualifications (RFQ); and 

4. That the City of Daphne desires to enter into separate contracts for both  professional services for 

“On Call” and Project Engineering Services with the named and/or qualified engineering firms; 

and 

5. That should a different engineering firm be determined to be necessary, due to qualifications or 

unique resources, the same shall be first approved by the City Council in advance of any contract 

for the same.    

  

 

 

 

223



 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-08         ESTABLISH PROCURMENT OF ENGINEERS                  PAGE   2 

 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED on this the                         day of                 , 2013. 

 

 

 

             

      DANE HAYGOOD, 

MAYOR 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

       

REBECCA A. HAYES 

INTERIM CITY CLERK 

224



 
 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

RESOLUTION 2013-09 

  
Recognizing the Daphne High School  

International Baccalaureate Programme  

Class of 2013 

 
WHEREAS, the International Baccalaureate Diploma Programme was established in 1968 in 

Geneva, Switzerland, to facilitate the international mobility of students preparing for university 

who wanted a rigorous curriculum and a diploma recognized by institutions of higher learning 

around the world; and    

 

WHEREAS, the worldwide International Baccalaureate Programme, after an exhaustive review 

process, selected Daphne High to become an IB World School in 2007, a designation that has 

since driven major advances in teaching and learning on that campus; and   

 

WHEREAS, the stringent academic requirements set forth by the IB curriculum are encouraging 

Daphne students to aspire to new heights as they choose from among the many post-secondary 

learning opportunities available to them; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne applauds the IB Class of 2013 for the hard work and dedication 

that have brought them to this pivotal moment in their academic careers and extends best wishes 

for continued success as they begin preparations for the IB international examinations to be held 

in the coming weeks; 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, commends the Daphne High School International 

Baccalaureate Class of 2013 for the important contribution they are making to the establishment 

of a world-class vision for education in our community and offers heartfelt congratulations on 

their imminent high school commencement.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ___ day of __________, 2013. 

 

 

        ______________________________ 

        Dane Haygood,  

Mayor 

 

      ATTEST: 

______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes,  

Interim City Clerk 

225



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-10 

2013-E-(3) HYDRAULIC RECYCLING TRAILERS 16’ 
 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the (3) 
HYDRAULIC RECYCLING TRAILERS 16’ will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the (3) HYDRAULIC RECYCLING 
TRAILERS 16’ and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, monies are available through the Alabama Department of 
Environmental Management (ADEM) 2012 Recycling Grant Program for the 
purchase of these trailers; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the (3) HYDRAULIC RECYCLING 
TRAILERS 16’ be awarded to Pro-Tainer, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Pro-Tainer, Inc. in the amount of $37,848 ($12,626/ea trailer) as specified in BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-E-(3) HYDRAULIC RECYCLING TRAILERS 16’. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                  day of                  , 2013 
 

                                                               
                                                                          
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
         
 

ATTEST: 
______________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk  
 

226



 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2013-11 

PREPAID TRAVEL 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

HEREBY AUTHORIZES THE FOLLOWING: 
 
Prepaid travel expenses are approved for the purpose and amount indicated below for the 
following: 
 

 
Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator; Florida Digital Governmental Summit; Tallahassee, 
FL, May 15-18, 2013 - $140 
 

 
A complete expense summary with receipts will be submitted and approved by the Mayor upon 
return from the above. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL, CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA on 

this                
 
    day of                                    , 2013.              

 
                                                               
                                                                       
     

                                                                               
     _________________________________ 

                                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 
             
 

ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk  

227



City of Daphne 
RESOLUTION 2013-12 

 
ACOA 59010 ATRIP(001) – Baldwin County ATRIP 02-01-22 – Resurface 

Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive from Dunbar Loop to Rolling Hill Drive / 
Consulting Services    ( Lake Forest Phase III ) 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne did heretofore make application for funding 
through Alabama Transportation Rehabilitation and  Improvement Program 
(ATRIP) to assist with City Road Projects.  
 
WHEREAS, the project to resurface Ridgewood Drive & Bayview Drive from 
Dunbar Loop to Rolling Hill Drive (Lake Forest Phase III) was approved for 
grant funding through the ATRIP Grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, project consulting services will be required to meet the 
requirements of the ATRIP Grant; and,  
 
WHEREAS, staff has reviewed the ATRIP Grant requirements and agree that 
Hutchinson, Moore, & Rauch, LLC (HMR, LLC) is qualified to provide the 
required consulting services. 
  
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council that the Mayor is 
hereby authorized to enter into a contract on behalf of the City of Daphne with 
HMR, LLC for a fee schedule as outlined in the attached agreement. 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED  this the _____ day of ___________ 2013. 
 
 

     
       
 
 
      _______________________________ 
      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 

 
ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, Interim City Clerk 

228



229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



247



248



249



250



251



252



253



254



255



256



257



258



259



260



 
CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO.  2013-11  

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

Zoning District Map 

Revision to the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at their regular 

meeting held on December 20, 2012, favorably recommended to the City Council of the City of 

Daphne certain amendments to the Zoning District Map approved and adopted by the Daphne Land 

Use and Development Ordinance No. 2011-54 and amended by Ordinances No. 2011-73 and 2012-

19 and 2012-54; and 

 

WHEREAS, said amendments are necessary due to various rezoning and annexation 

requests which have been approved since the adoption of Ordinance 2011-54 and Ordinances 2011-

73 and 2012-19 and 2012-54; and 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed zoning map amendments has been provided to the 

public as required by law through publication and open display at the City  of Daphne Public Library 

and City Hall; and 

 

WHEREAS, a public hearing regarding the proposed Zoning District Map amendments was 

held by the City Council on February 18, 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission believe it in the best interest of the health, safety and 

welfare of the citizens of the City of Daphne to amend said Zoning District Map as recommended; 

and 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I: ZONING DISTRICT MAP 

 

The Zoning District Map referenced hereto as Exhibit AA@ shall be the official zoning map of 

the City of Daphne, Alabama and shall be further designated in Appendix H of Exhibit AA@ of the 

City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance, as set forth in Ordinance No. 2011-54 and its 

amendments. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER 

 

Ordinance No. 2011-54, Appendix H AExhibit A@, Ordinances No. 2011-73 and 2012-19   

and 2012-54 is hereby repealed and any Ordinance(s), parts of Ordinance(s) or Resolution(s) 

conflicting with the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby repealed insofar as they conflict. 

261



 
ORDINANCE 2013-11                     REVISION TO ZONING MAP                           PAGE   2 

 

 

 

SECTION III: EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the 

City of Daphne City Council and publication as required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THE           
 
DAY OF                   , 2013. 

 

 

                     

_____________________ 

DANE HAYGOOD,  

MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES,  

INTERIM  CITY CLERK 
 

262



CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-12 

 

 

Ordinance to Amend the City of Daphne  

Land Use and Development Ordinance 

Appendix O, Low Impact Development & Green Infrastructure  

 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne, Alabama at its regular meeting held on 

December 20, 2012, considered certain proposed amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance, Ordinance No. 2011-54, and any amendments to the same; and, 

 

WHEREAS, after such consideration the Planning Commission sent a favorable recommendation to 

the City Council of the City of Daphne for the approval of said amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use 

and Development Ordinance; and, 

 

WHEREAS, due notice of said proposed amendment has been provided to the public as required by 

law through publication and open display at the Daphne Public Library and City Hall, a public hearing was 

held before the City Council on February 18, 2013; and, 

                                  

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne after due consideration and upon 

recommendation of the Planning Commission, deemed that said amendments to the City of Daphne Land Use 

and Development Ordinance are proper and in the best interest of the health, safety and welfare of the citizens 

of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

SECTION I.  AMENDMENT 

 

 a.  Table of Contents to said Ordinance shall be amended to include Appendix O: Low Impact 

Development/Green Infrastructure (LID/GI) Project Application; 

 

 b.  Article 18-1(A)  shall be amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

 

18-1 GENERAL       

A.    Purpose: 

The purpose of this section is to provide a guide for development wherein the ecological 

impacts to the environment are minimized through appropriate design, landscaping, erosion 

control, stormwater management, and proper planning.  The intent of the City of Daphne is to 

protect valuable natural resources, the natural environment and the quality of life for all its 

citizens.  In order to preserve the integrity, stability and the value of land, the City encourages 

the use of innovative, LEED-certified (Leadership in Energy and Environmental Design) 

and/or other “green” practices in development design.  Where such methods/practices are 

proposed for a development said practices shall be designed in accordance with Appendix O, 

The Low Impact Development  and Green Infrastructure Project application and certified by a 

credentialed professional in his/her design field.   

 

  c.  Appendix O: Low Impact Development/Green Infrastructure (LID/GI) Project Application as 

attached to this Ordinance, shall be added to the Land Use Ordinance in its entirety. 

 

263



 

ORDINANCE 2013-12    LOW IMPACT DEVELOPMENT & GREEN INFRASTRUCTURE      PAGE   3 

 

All other sections, articles, and/or content of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development 

Ordinance shall remain the same and shall be unchanged by this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION II: REPEALER.  

 

All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance, in so far as 

they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

SECTION III: SEVERABILITY.  
 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable. If any provision, section, paragraph, sentence, or part 

thereof shall be held unconstitutional or invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of said 

Ordinance, it being the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence, and 

part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

SECTION IV: EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its approval by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne and after publication as required by law.  

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ____  day of ________________, 2013. 

 

 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION 

 

  

 

___________________________________                             

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR                       

 

 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________                                                                           

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

INTERIM CITY CLERK 

 

 

264



265



266



267



268



269



270



271



272



273



274



275



276



277



278



279



280



281



282



283



284


	AGENDA  -  February 18    Agenda
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - February 4
	Council Work Session Minutes - February 11
	Proclamation - Arbor Day
	Public Hearing Info
	REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES
	Finance Minutes - 2013-02-11
	Backup to Finance Min 2-11
	Buildings & Property Minutes Jan 2013
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - February 13
	Change Order Motion Approving CO - SJL
	Backup I - to Change Order Motion - No 001 (Wetlands)
	Sheet1

	Backup II - to Change Order Motion
	REPORT OF SPECIAL COMMITTEES
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Set PH Date Info
	MAYORS REPORT
	CITY ATTORNEY REPORT - DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS
	Band Permit - Beth Pierce
	Parade Permit - DUMC
	RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES - COUNCIL COMMENTS
	2013-08 - RES - Repealing Resolution 2009-73 and Est Eng Services
	2013-09 - RES -  IB Proclammation Feb  2013
	2013-10 - RES - Recycling Trailers-2013
	2013-11 - RES - PPDTrav
	2013-12 - RES - ATRIP - Consulting-HMR - LF Phase III
	Backup to - 2013-12 - RES
	2013-11 - ORD - REVISE ZONING MAP 12 12 (2)
	2013-12 - ORD - Amend LUDO - Low Impact Development Appex O
	Backup to 2013-12 - ORD - Appexdix O - Low Impact Dev _Green Infra



